Faculty Senate Minutes October 31, 2006

The meeting was called to order at 4:05 p.m. All departments were in attendance except Economics, Nursing, Social Work and Special Education. An additional 12 faculty members attended this special meeting to discuss General Education.

I. Discussion of Elements of General Education

Dr. Marjorie Warmkessel reviewed the format of the meeting to discuss GERC proposals on three issues, writing courses, diversity courses and the "2-course" rule. Each topic will be discussed for an initial period of 15 minutes. Discussion may be extended for up to three 5 minute periods by motion. Non-binding, straw votes will be used by GERC to evaluate general perceptions on discussed topics.

Writing Courses

Discussion was held regarding three issues: 1) reinstatement of original elements of the W designation from 1988 (a comparison guide was distributed) [see Attachment #1]; 2) establishing a class size limit of 25 for W courses; 3) dropping the W requirement from 4 to 3 to accommodate limited class size.

Discussion included the following comments and questions:

- The requirement of 10 pages of revised prose is no longer specified.
- Word count should be used as a more accurate standard than page number.
- The overall total could be distributed throughout a given week or across the semester to limit the burden on the instructor.
- How many courses would be affected by the class size limit? How many students are currently in W courses? Response: Some classes have up to 30 or 40 students, but most have fewer than 33.
- Will it be feasible to add necessary sections of classes? Response: The proposal to reduce the W requirement from 4 to 3 would help alleviate this issue.
- If we are committed to enhancing writing requirements, we need administrative support for adding the necessary sections.
- UNIV179 course should include a writing component since they are already meeting the class size limit. Response: Some UNIV179 courses do incorporate writing.
- Capping the size of W courses within a major is difficult, and many students fulfill their W requirement with major courses.
- Some courses designated as W do not have a writing component that meets the intention of the original designation. Should these courses be reviewed to be sure they meet standards?
- If there were more writing across the curriculum within majors, we would better achieve our goal of training our students to write well. Response: The community hiring our graduates requires that we adequately train our students.

- If we can be more effective in training students in early stages, they will carry that skill with them. Response: Students often lose these skills when expectations are not maintained continuously.
- We need to convince students that writing skills are essential and should be maintained.

Straw votes were taken on each of the three aspects discussed:

- 1) "Should we reinstate the original 1988 guidelines for the W designation?" Yes (23), No (0), Abstain (1)
- 2) "If we reinstate the orignal 1988 guidelines, should we put a class size limit of 25 on all W courses?"

Yes (23), No (1), Abstain (0)

3) "If W courses are capped at 25, should we reduce the number of required W courses from 4 to 3 if necessitated by budgetary concerns?" Yes (7), No (16), Abstain (0)

Diversity Courses

Discussion was held regarding whether to establish a required D designation. Although there was limited support from faculty for designating courses this way during discussions last year, GERC modified their proposal to indicate that students be encouraged by advising to take D courses. Dr. Scott Schaffer distributed a summary and a draft of a proposal from the President's Commission on Cultural Diversity (PCCD) to GERC [see Attachment #3]. He noted that this was a revised proposal.

Discussion included the following comments and questions:

- Adding another label would further limit the choices students have for meeting Gen Ed requirements. Response: Dr. Schaffer indicated that a brief review of courses currently being offered resulted in 118 that would likely be given the D designation.
- Having a D label without a requirement in the curriculum is irrelevant.
- What qualifies a course for the D designation? Response: Dr. Schaffer noted eight types of diversity as outlined in the summary from the PCCD. Courses that address any of these eight factors would be eligible.
- Do we achieve a better understanding of diversity if students take courses focused on a group of which they are a member? Would there be different D courses for culturally diverse groups? Response: It is a bad assumption that students know themselves or the groups to which they belong in a meaningful way. Advisement would be important in helping students find the best courses for them. However, students often take the easiest route.
- Designating courses this way does not make diversity more relevant on campus. The university should be aspiring to this in course content, hiring and elsewhere. Response: The designation can make a statement about the fact that we value diversity.
- What is the role of intellectual diversity?
- Other aspects of Gen Ed also carry expectations or ideals that we do not always accomplish.

- Could each department be encouraged to intentionally include aspects of diversity in their curriculum? Response: If this is a non credit-bearing requirement, there could be a place for it.
- Is GERC reflecting PCCD recommendations? More information seems to be needed about our goals. Response: GERC was charged to find intentional alignment of our courses to our institutional values.
- Guests visiting a university campus can see diversity that is institutional but will not see this if it is simply a designation.
- Perspective courses are supposed to be interdisciplinary and should inherently reflect a level of diversity. Response: Not all P courses reflect a multi-cultural aspect of diversity.

A Schaffer/Moné motion to continue discussion of diversity designations was approved without dissent.

Discussion continued:

- Just taking a course does not generate an appreciation of a culture or diversity. Working with other students of different backgrounds requires this. There needs to be more interactions among diverse people on campus. Response: Students who take a foreign language must enter a new way of understanding.
- P courses address diversity of ideas, intellectual diversity, but are not included in the courses identified as being likely D courses.

A Mowrey/J. Miller motion to continue discussion of diversity designations was approved without dissent.

Discussion continued:

- Need a better definition of what is meant by diversity to know how to implement this within the curriculum.
- No classes we teach can guarantee that the students will learn what we intend. We should at least try to expose students to ideas. PCCD hopes to generate encouragement of recognizing the importance of diversity.
- Diversity is a quality of a given community.

A Carter/Mollah motion to continue discussion of diversity designations was approved without dissent.

Discussion continued:

- The real question here seems to be how we define diversity and incorporate it. More information is needed on how these definitions would be implemented.
- What is the Millersville community? How are we bringing a diverse population to campus. We used to offer in-state tuition rates for international students.
- The onus is on departments to help us define this and identify courses that may meet diversity goals in unique ways.
- Education students already have difficulty meeting credit limits. There are not enough courses in the major to allow for double counting of these courses easily.
- Science students will also be limited by needing to fill the requirement outside the major.

- What we write down for ourselves is what we believe. Every one of us needs to include these aspects in our courses.
- One size fits all will not work. Departments should help lay out what their students need.
- English majors can benefit from understanding biology. Diversity of perspectives is important, yet it feels like the focus is on racism. We need to focus on student needs.

A Schaffer/Stengel motion to table discussion of diversity designations to allow further review was approved without dissent. Senator Schaffer requested that senators carefully review the revised recommendation from PCCD and invited any comments or suggestions.

"2-Course" Rule

Discussion was held regarding whether to eliminate the requirement that exactly two courses be taken from a single department in each G block.

Discussion included the following comments and questions:

- Would this change make it more difficult to meet the requirement for 3 200-level courses?
- The purpose of the restriction is to create depth within fields outside of the home block. Opposed to students taking only introductory courses for Gen Ed blocks.
- Since many students fulfill the 3 200-level requirement within their major, this is the only way to get depth outside their home block.
- Would this change also allow students to take all their courses in a block from a single department? Response: Yes. If the new Gen Ed program requires only 3 courses per block student would be able to take 1 course from each of 3 departments, 2 courses from 1 department and 1 course from another or 3 course from 1 department.
- The rule as it is now provides both breadth and depth. Students will likely choose to take the easiest path of all introductory-level courses.
- We want to keep student options open and allow for experimentation. We need to avoid defining sets of courses that students are encouraged to take.
- Could we eliminate the designation of specific courses as Gen Ed and allow any courses from the departments in each block? Response: The Education departments have courses with several different designations, but these could be accounted for.
- Reduction of block requirements from 4 to 3 will likely reduce student exposure to diverse concepts in other fields.
- Extreme cases of students taking classes with limited breadth and depth are unlikely to happen regularly.

Straw votes were taken:

"Should we eliminate the requirement that exactly two courses must be taken from a single department in each G block?"

Yes (6), No (13), Abstain (3)

II. Discussion of Purpose and Objectives of General Education

Senator Warmkessel expressed appreciation of the input from senators. She noted that revised purpose and objectives for Gen Ed were attached to the GERC questions [see Attachment #3]. Further discussion will be held at future Senate meetings.

III. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 5:30 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Aimee L. Miller Faculty Senate Secretary

Action Summary:

A Schaffer/Moné motion to continue discussion of diversity designations was approved without dissent.

A Mowrey/J. Miller motion to continue discussion of diversity designations was approved without dissent.

A Carter/Mollah motion to continue discussion of diversity designations was approved without dissent.

A Schaffer/Stengel motion to table discussion of diversity designations to allow further review was approved without dissent.

Attachment #1

Elements of Gen Ed Proposal for Discussion at October 31 special meeting of Faculty Senate

GERC Proposal Element	Rationale	Qu	estions for 10/31 straw poll
Writing Courses Reinstate the original elements of the W designation, putting a class size limit of 25 on all W courses to make this feasible for course instructors.	There are few who would argue with the idea of writing-across-the-curriculum. The Gen Ed Survey last spring overwhelmingly supported the retention of W courses but only with changes made to increase their effectiveness. For budgetary reasons in the late 1990s, class size limits for W courses were raised and the original elements for designation as a W course were made optional. Reinstatement of the original intentions of the W initiative is expected to increase their effectiveness, while changing the number of W's required will preserve some measure of cost savings.	1.	Should we reinstate the original 1988 guidelines for the W designation? If we reinstate the original 1988 guidelines, should we put a class size limit of 25 on all W courses? If W courses are capped at 25, should we reduce the number of required W courses from 4 to 3 if necessitated by budgetary concerns?
Diversity Courses Add more explicit encouragement of diversity by creating a D designation for courses (similar to W for writing courses)—the criteria for which would be recommended by GERC and approved by Faculty Senate—and encourage students to take these courses through advisement.	It is vital for our students to grow in their understanding of diversity. This is part of our University's mission. It is important that this occurs in co-curricular activities, as well as in coursework. We recommend the creation of a D designation for courses and recommend that advisors and students use this designation during the advisement process. While "diversity" has many different meanings, we recommend using the objective below to inform course designation. Proposed diversity objective: Students will grow in their engagement with peoples of diverse histories and communities, both inside and outside the United States. Aligned with Characteristic 2.		Should we establish a D designation for diversity courses and require all students to take one D course? Should we establish a D designation for diversity courses and encourage students through advisement to take these courses?
"2-Course" Rule Eliminate the requirement that exactly two courses must be taken from a single department in each G block.	The "at least two but no more than two" rule was an effort to legislate depth while not sacrificing breadth, but it has caused excess complexity and confusion. With a commitment to increasing flexibility and simplicity (Characteristic 6) in a revised curriculum, these restrictions should be lifted. Breadth and depth are encouraged by good advisement, the distribution of courses into three academic blocks, P courses, and increased interdisciplinarity in the curriculum.	1.	Should we eliminate the requirement that exactly two courses must be taken from a single department in each G block?

Attachment #2

President's Commission on Cultural Diversity Inclusive Conception of Diversity

Components	Experiential, Interactional	Material	Social, Cultural	Intellectual
Race/Ethnicity				
Gender		Global Community		
Material/Class		National Community		
Sexual Orientation		Pennsylvanía		
National Origin		Lancaster County		
Religion	Millersville	University	Community	
Age				
Physical Ability				

President's Commission on Cultural Diversity Proposal for Gen Ed Diversity Requirement

Proposal:

- > To require at least one, and preferably two, diversity-related courses as non-credit components of the Gen Ed curriculum in a manner like the Writing (W) requirement.
- > Courses can be double- or triple-counted for major/minor/Gen Ed credit, W credit, and Diversity (D) credit.
- Courses can critically explore one or more types of diversity in one or more of their components in a variety of ways.

Rationales:

- > Institutional Statement on Our Ideal Campus Climate says that we firmly believe diversity is part of MU
- Demographic Shifts in the Commonwealth and the US prepares students for grappling with changing populations of PA and the US
- Professional Preparation for Our Students Exposure to diversity issues means a deeper sense of teamwork and additional preparation
- Match Between Visible Diversity on Campus and Our Curriculum Diversity is already on campus, but curriculum has not caught up
- > Linkages Between the Local and Global Experiences with diversity at one level of social life can be translated into others
- Recruitment and Retention of Faculty and Students Bringing the best from a variety of backgrounds means we need to have a curriculum that represents everyone
- Match Between Our Commitments Diversity requirement fulfills promise made by MU Mission Statement

Preliminary Estimate of Number of D Courses (based on old D proposal + prima facie reading of Catalogue):

118 Total Courses: 19 Gl courses 2 G2 courses 40 G3 courses 33 P courses 48 W courses

DRAFT

To: General Education Review Committee

From: Scott Schaffer, Chair, President's Commission on Cultural Diversity

Date:

Re: Proposal regarding the Diversity designation in the new General Education curriculum

The President's Commission on Cultural Diversity (PCCD) wishes to comment on the proposal to designate, but not require, courses as reflecting a concern with cultural diversity. In particular, we would recommend to the General Education Review Committee the following proposition, namely that

The General Education curriculum should require at least one, and preferably two, courses as meeting a non-credit Diversity requirement, in a manner similar to the W course requirement.

In the same way that major, minor, and elective courses can meet the University's four-course Writing requirement (which does not increase credits in the General Education curriculum), we believe that including one or two courses as meeting a Diversity requirement in the same way would not add credits to the General Education curriculum (thereby preserving those credits for major or minor requirements), and would also make a statement that we believe a concern with cultural diversity is, as Stephen A Privett, S.J., President of University of San Francisco, argues, "not a political agenda, but the necessary ingredient of a quality education in the 21st century."

It should be noted that the common-sense conception of "diversity" – as reported in the recent campus environmental scan done in the midst of the institutional identity project – as being the same as "issues of race" is not necessarily the notion of cultural diversity with which PCCD approaches the issue. There are, in fact, multiple components of social life through which cultural diversity manifests itself – or, put another way, cultural diversity appears when we consider issues of gender, race and ethnicity, sexual orientation, national background or placement in the global system, material/economic background, religious background, age, and physical ability. All of these aspects of diversity impact on the ways in which people interact with one another and create both opportunities and challenges for the fostering of community and a collective civic life and public sphere, and each of them contribute cultural elements to a given social situation. Likewise, there are four components of cultural diversity, regardless of the aspect of social life we look at, namely: experiential and interactional components; social and cultural components; material components; and intellectual components. When we explore the intersections of these various types and the components of people's lives that they contribute to our community, there are a lot of ways that cultural diversity manifests itself, few of which actually involve race or ethnicity.

Additionally, it should be noted that campus events over this past year – both positive, such as the Creating Caring Communities initiative, and negative, like the September incident at the Student Memorial Center – have shown that diversity needs to be a critical component of our

educational process here – not only for white, upper-class, heterosexual, physically able students, but for all of our students. We cannot expect to produce respectful and productive citizens of the

Commonwealth in a situation in which our educational process is disconnected from the experiences of the members of our community, regardless of their background.

Finally, it should be noted that this is not simply a matter of "teaching tolerance." Rather, if our institution is claiming an identity that reflects our desire to prepare students to be productive and engaged citizens, our emphasis needs to be on the understanding of the varieties and manifestations of all types of cultural diversity in our community, our state, the nation, and the world so that instead of merely tolerating the existence of others who are different in various ways, we make a steadfast effort to produce students who are respectful and accepting of the validity of those differences and their contributions to our society.

We believe the following represent compelling reasons why a Diversity requirement should be an integral component of a revised General Education curriculum.

Institutional Statement on Our Ideal Campus Climate: MU has chosen in its Mission Statement to identify itself as an institution that offers "a curriculum that is rich and multifaceted, by serving as a model of a pluralistic community, and by providing leadership in this regard to the greater community." As well, the University fosters "the examination, development, and understanding of personal values and appreciation of the values of others." While we can rely upon good advising – which many of us would agree occurs probably only 50% of the time, though we certainly hope it is more frequent – to foster students' examining of these issues, we make a stronger statement that supports our mission by requiring students to take courses that are specifically identified as addressing diversity issues of the varieties listed above.

Demographic Shifts in the Commonwealth and the US: By the year 2050, European-descended Americans will represent only 53% of the US population. According to the Census Bureau's 2050 projects, the ethnic breakdown of the American population will be 50.1% white (down from 69.4% in 2000), 24.4% Hispanic American, 8% Asian American, and 14.6% African American. Women will continue to outnumber men by mid-century, and by 2030, 1 in 5 Americans will be over 65 years old. And even with advances in medicine, people with varying kinds of disabilities will still represent a significant portion of the population. Given these shifts, we believe that it is imperative that we begin cultural diversity education now so that our students, and by extension the communities they participate in as alumni, will be prepared to live well with people from a variety of backgrounds and abilities.

Professional Preparation for Our Students: Concomitantly with these demographic shifts, we will also find significant shifts in the populations with which our students will be working as professionals. In addition to these internal demographic shifts, immigration, as well as the continued globalization of the economy, will bring our alumni into increasing contact with people from all over the world. In order for them to be well-prepared professionals operating in an increasingly diverse society (MU Mission Statement, paras. 1, 3, and 6), our students need to be exposed to a diversity of perspectives, experiences, and backgrounds. A diversity requirement would help this preparation process. This is particularly crucial for students in the School of Education, who would then enter the workforce being prepared for a diverse student body, thereby enhancing their desirability as teachers and MU's reputation as being truly engaged with the needs of the community.

Match Between the Visible Diversity at MU and Our Curriculum: While our minor programs in African-American Studies, Latino/Latina Studies, Women's Studies, and Gerontology (and the developing program in Asian and Asian-American Studies) represent significant and diverse contributions to the educational opportunities MU provides to its student body, they are options for students, and those who pursue these minor opportunities are generally either those who are committed to working in those fields (Gerontology) or who personally identify in some way with the minor. They therefore "preach to the converted," offering their insights only to those who are already interested in the topic and issues and not doing as much as is possible to foster a diverse and inclusive campus community. A diversity requirement as part of the General Education curriculum would ensure that those who would benefit most from discovering the experiences and insights offered by the different groups who make up the Millersville, Commonwealth, and North American community will have the opportunity to gain these insights, growing personally (MU Mission Statement, paras. 3, 4, and 6) as well as being better prepared professionally.

Linkages Between the Local and the Global: A diversity requirement provides an excellent opportunity for our students to begin to see the linkages between local phenomena and national and global patterns. As one of the General Education objectives is to provide opportunities for students to extend knowledge into new areas, and one of the types of learning on Bloom's Taxonomy is the recognition of patterns (analysis), requiring students to learn about the experiences of people from varying backgrounds, whether in the US or at the global level, will enable them to see patterns of commonality between their own local, regional, national, and global experiences and those of others, thereby providing students with a deeper basis to develop a greater sense of community through their practices in society.

Recruitment and Retention of Faculty and Students: MU has been highly successful within the PASSHE at recruiting faculty and students from a variety of backgrounds, and there has been an institutional commitment to ensuring that this recruitment continues and that our community reflects the diversity of the Commonwealth. However, the retention of faculty and students, as well as the need to increase recruitment of people from diverse backgrounds, requires that we create a campus climate *in all its forms* that supports and values the contributions they bring to the MU community through their experiences and ways of knowing the world. As more and more of our competitor institutions bring diversity requirements into their curricula, our not having one will represent a hindrance to our efforts to bring the best faculty and students from a wide variety of backgrounds to campus.

Match Between Our Commitments: The MU Mission Statement highlights a number of core commitments to which the University holds "steadfastly": "intellectual development"; "to prepare its students to live in an increasingly diverse, multicultural, and technologically complex society," by "offering a curriculum that is rich and multifaceted [and] by serving as a model of a pluralistic community"; "to open avenues for personal, social, and cultural growth essential to the development of an educated and productive person"; "foster[ing] the examination, development, and understanding of personal values and appreciation of the values of others"; and a pledge to "encourage imagination and curiosity, unfettered discourse, the exchange of divergent and controversial opinion, [and] multicultural awareness and understanding." We have also committed ourselves to a greater international awareness and understanding (MU Academic Affairs Master Plan). Yet, to merely suggest to students through advisement that they "should"

take courses identified as having a diversity component demonstrates that we are not fully or steadfastly committed to these goals. A diversity requirement would demonstrate conclusively

that we truly believe in our mission and are ready to mandate that students who come to MU will graduate having a deeper understanding and appreciation for the diversity of the nation and the world.

Additional Notes

This focus on including a diversity requirement in the General Education curriculum is by no means an attempt to radically transform the curriculum, to prevent the teaching of traditional texts and ideas, or to mandate that students change themselves through exposure to diversity-related courses. Rather, following from Otten (2003: 19), we believe that:

A diversity-sensitive curriculum can lead to both academic achievement and growth of the students' personalities:

- A diversified curriculum can help bridge differences, both on campus and in society. Learning about diversity and global cultural traditions brings groups of students together rather than dividing them.
- ➤ Diversifying and expanding the knowledge base of the college curriculum does not prevent students from studying traditional texts and core contents of their major discipline.
- ➤ Diversity courses challenge students to think in more complex ways about identity and history, and avoid cultural stereotyping.¹

Likewise – and just as in any other course, regardless of its content – there is no way to mandate that a student comprehends or will implement the course materials, whether professionally or personally. We have no guarantees of student learning in any type of course, and a diversity-related course is no different. Rather, we believe that the requirement to be *exposed* to issues, ideas, and experiences of people who can be characterized by the eight types of diversity included in this proposal will have a *higher likelihood* of having a positive impact on our students (and by extension, the communities and professions in which our students will be embedded) than a mere suggestion that students expose themselves to these issues, ideas, and experiences, which in essence amounts to no requirement at all.

Assessment of Diversity Courses and Learning

Courses being proposed as meeting a Diversity requirement should be subject to the same evaluation processes that pertain to other General Education or other classifications (G1, G2, G3, P, W, or DL). Any type of reaccreditation process that pertains to these courses should be extended to include Diversity courses; as well, whenever significant changes are proposed to D courses, they should be re-evaluated with regard to these proposed assessment guidelines.

As indicated above, there are at least eight types of diversity that have cultural components to them: sex/gender, race/ethnicity, material background, sexual orientation, religion, national background and placement in the global system, and physical ability. Courses that contain

¹ Matthias Otten, "Intercultural Learning and Diversity in Higher Education." Pp. 12-26 in *Journal of Studies in International Education*, vol. 7, no. 1, Spring 2003.

significant components relating to one or more of these diversity categories can be submitted for consideration as Diversity (D) courses.

As well, there are four significant components to cultural diversity issues that intersect with each of these types of diversity and that are reflected in the backgrounds of our students, faculty, and staff: experiential and interactional components; material components; social and cultural components; and intellectual components (or ways of knowing the world). Courses proposed as D courses should be able to specify the particular components of cultural diversity they examine.

Assessment for Inclusion as D Course in General Education Curriculum

Courses that are proposed as D courses should be assessed according to some, if not all, of the following criteria (adapted from Meacham [accessed 2006]²), in addition to other Gen Ed criteria the course proposed to meet:

- 1. What types of diversity does this course address, how are they addressed, and in what context are they addressed? (Sex/gender, race/ethnicity, material background, sexual orientation, religion, national background/placement in the world system, age, physical ability)
- 2. What components pertaining to these types of diversity does this course address? (Experiential/interactional, material, social/cultural, intellectual)
- 3. What are the course objectives pertaining to the examination of these types and components of diversity?

An emphasis on critically evaluating the types of diversity the course is concerned with is expected. There are a variety of ways this could take place. One example is the Williams College approach, in which diversity-related courses "include an explicit and critical self-reflection on and immersion in a culture or people":

- Through comparative study of cultures and societies;
- Through curriculums that encourage "empathetic understanding" of diverse groups by "recreating the social, political, cultural, and historical context of a group to imagine why within that context, those beliefs, experiences, and actions of the group have emerged";
- ➤ Through study of "power and privilege";
- > Through "critical theorization" in which students explore the ways scholars analyze cross-cultural interaction;
- ➤ Through "cultural immersion," which could involve study abroad or through foreign language courses that "explicitly engage in the self-conscious awareness of cultural and societal differences, traditions, and customs."
- 4. How will this course assess these particular course objectives, and how do those assessment practices pertain to the diversity objectives of the course?

² Jack Meacham, "Assessing Diversity Courses: Tips and Tools," *DiversityWeb*. Accessed October 27, 2006 at http://www.diversityweb.org/digest/Sp.Sm00/courses.html.

³ Scott Jaschik, "Next Generation Diversity," *Inside Higher Education*, October 27/2006. http://insidehighered.com/layout/set/print/news/2006/10/27/williams.

Certain kinds of tools, such as multiple-choice objective exams, may not be appropriate for evaluating particular kinds of diversity-learning course objectives. Situational evaluations (through presentations and interpersonal interactions), self-evaluation essays, and other types of critical written work may be better suited for assessing diversity learning.

5. How will "diversity learning" in particular be assessed by this course?

Courses that deal with diversity-related issues have to assess diversity learning in ways that are different from other courses, particular since there is no objective way that this can be assessed. Asking students to assess their own and others' learning through statements like "This course helped me to understand myself and others in ways other than stereotyped groups and categories" and "I have been able to see connections between the material in this course and real-life situations I might face in my family, on the job, or as a citizen" enable faculty to get a clearer sense of the success of diversity learning.

6. How does this course propose to manage the classroom-related issues that can arise with regard to diversity-related teaching and learning?

Courses with diversity-related components, particularly components that pertain to students' own backgrounds or their perceptions of themselves, can result in intense and personally relevant discussions, as well as substantial changes in how students perceive themselves. Those who participate most frequently in class discussions may not be voices that are representative of the entire class, and other students may feel marginalized within the classroom. Faculty who propose courses for inclusion in the D course listing should be prepared to discuss how they will maintain a classroom environment that will foster diversity learning and respect.

Final Assessment of D Courses and Diversity Learning

Courses that are proposed for inclusion in the D course listing and the faculty teaching them will not necessarily have these elements reflected in a standardized course/professor evaluation instrument. Faculty proposing D courses should be willing to discuss how they would want their courses evaluated *in addition to the standardized evaluation instrument* so that the particular challenges of teaching D courses can be reflected and appropriate feedback can be garnered by the faculty member, GERC, and other interested bodies.

Course/Faculty Evaluations and Reappointment/Tenure/Promotion Decisions

Faculty evaluations for courses in the D course listing should be evaluated in the context of the course, the faculty member's self-assessment of their professional development and responsibilities, and the General Education and institutional objectives pertaining to diversity, particularly Objectives 1 and 6.

A Closing Note

Globalization, immigration, demographic shifts internal to the United States, and the challenges presented by the "clash of civilizations" thesis presumed in current American domestic and foreign policy are all happening, regardless of what we do in our General Education

transformation process. These are fundamental forces that will shape the ways in which our students now and in the future interact with others in their personal, academic, professional, and civic lives. The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the US, and the world our students face will not be one that operates on the principles that we were brought up with, and our students should be prepared for these shifts in the world.

An increasing number of universities across the US are instituting diversity requirements in their curricula, if not radically transforming their General Education programs to reflect an increased concern with national and global diversity. If we do not institute a diversity requirement, we will increasingly find ourselves "left behind," unable to recruit students who want to be exposed to the ideas and experiences of peoples from varying backgrounds and situations and faculty who believe that a commitment to diversity is an intrinsic part of who they are as educators. An institution such as Millersville that strives to be on the "cutting edge" of new programs and approaches to teaching and learning must be willing to keep abreast, if not ahead, of similar institutions if we want to truly be at the forefront of higher education.

Likewise, It is ethically incumbent upon us as educators in an institution that is so clearly committed to serving as a resource for the communities in which we are embedded to provide our students with the tools necessary for life-long learning; and with regard to the cultural and demographic shifts that are coming over the next decades, it is particularly important that our students are enabled to deal with the impacts of these changes on their lives. Instituting a non-credit Diversity requirement in the General Education curriculum will ensure that our students are at the very least exposed to the experiences, issues, and ideas that pertain to these shifts and are thereby enabled to become the kind of productive citizens we want to send out into the world.

Attachment #3

Purpose and Objectives for General Education: (Gen Ed Review Committee 10/03/06)

Purpose

Consistent with Millersville University's mission to provide a liberal arts-based education, the purpose of General Education is to provide breadth of knowledge as a balance and complement to the depth provided by the major. This is necessary for the holistic development of Millersville graduates as responsible citizens.

General Education Objectives:

Students, working with advisors, and taking into consideration prior knowledge and experience, purposefully select courses in the General Education curriculum that work together with required courses, co-curricular and extra-curricular activities, and courses in the major to achieve the following objectives:

Foundations for Critical Thinking

- 1. Students will think, speak and write clearly. This is evidenced by:
 - a) the clear presentation of ideas in formal spoken, written, and media forms.
 - b) the use of effective communication for ongoing dialogue.
 - c) the ability to find appropriate sources of information, evaluate that information, and integrate that information into a final product.

Critical Thinking in the Disciplines

- 2. In mathematics students will:
 - a) employ statistical methods to analyze and interpret data or employ techniques of calculus to solve problems.
 - b) formulate and solve problems from the real world using the symbolic language of mathematics with technology as appropriate.
- 3. In social sciences students will:
 - a) evaluate relationships among human behavior, social institutions, culture, and/or environment using the quantitative and qualitative methods of inquiry of the social sciences and using technology as appropriate.
 - b) evaluate and apply social science data and theories in the course of participating as informed citizens in a democracy that exists within an increasingly complex global society.
- 4. In the sciences students will:
 - a) use the scientific method, laboratory study, appropriate technology, and mathematics to investigate and evaluate scientific concepts and theories.
 - b) evaluate and apply scientific data and theories.
- 5. In the humanities students will:
 - a) use critical analysis to respond thoughtfully to works of literature.
 - b) apply critical and creative methods of the arts and humanities using technology as appropriate.

Connections Within and Beyond The Classroom

- 6. Students will connect important ideas and methods of inquiry from different disciplines as a means of becoming holistic and responsible citizens; specifically students will:
 - a) demonstrate civic and social responsibility.
 - b) grow in their engagement with peoples of diverse histories and communities, both inside and outside the United States.
 - c) build the foundation for a lifelong process of understanding, developing, and monitoring healthy lifestyle behaviors in all dimensions of wellness, including physical, social, emotional, intellectual, spiritual, and environmental wellness.

d) gain personal enrichment by developing new interests that can be enjoyed throughout a lifetime.